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" NAME

HISTORIC

Ronstadt House
AND/OR COMMON

PRLOCATION
STREET & NUMBER
607 North 6th Avenue __NOT FOR PUBLICATION
CITY. TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Tucson — VICINITY OF 2
STATE CODE COUNTY CODE
Arizcna 04 Pima 019
=8 CLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWMERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISTRICT __PUBLIC L OCCUPIED __AGRICULTURE __MUSEUM
L BUILDING(S) Kerivate __UNOCCUPIED __COMMERCIAL __PARK
__STRUCTURE __BOTH __WORK IN PROGRESS __EDUCATIONAL XPRIVATE RESIDENCE
__SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT __RELIGIOUS
__OBJECT __IN PROCESS __YES RESTRICTED __GOVERNMENT __SCIENTIFIC
__BEING CONSIDERED X YES: UNRESTRICTED __INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
__NO __MILITARY __OTHER

E¥OWNER OF PROPERTY

NAME

Howard & Glendora Goff & David Goff
STREET & NUMBER

405 North 400 West 2562 North Bentley Avenue
CITY. TOWN STATE
Marion, Indiana 46952 ___ VICINITY OF Tucson, AZ 85716

@LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION

COURTHOUSE,
REGISTRY OF DEEDS,ETC

Pima County Courthouse

STHEET & NUMBER

CITY. TOWN ) o STATE
Tucson Arizona

B REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

TITLE

DATE

~FEDERAL _STATE __COUNTY _ LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVLY HECORDS

CITY. TOWN STATE



i DESCRIPTION

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED —UNALTERED X_ORIGINAL SITE
__GOODD —RUINS X_ALTERED —MOVED DATE
X FaIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The imposing two-story Ronstadt House stands on a double Tot (132' x 184') on the NW

corner of North 6th Avenue and East 5th Street. The building is 62' x 72' with 4960
square feet of interior space.

The walls of plastered brick are 16" thick on the first floor and 12" on the second
floor. The basement walls and foundations are volcanic rock, a material much used

1oca]?y at the time the house was built. The roof is flat with wide eaves and boxed
cornice.

The facade is domin@ted by full-height octagonal columns joined by a balcony. Both
balcony and capitals have Sullivanesque ornamentation of hand-cast concrete. The
second floor has an arcaded porch on three sides. This has since been closed in.

The raised basement, with its floor of herringbone brick, originally had a storage
room, a furnace room, and a large bedroom and bath for the boys. It is now divided
into two apartments.

The main floor contained a large central hall, a dining room, parlor, bedroom, kitchen,
pantry, sewing room, and a "den" apiece for Fred and Lupe. This floor is now divided
into six apartments. The second floor originally had three bedrooms, a bath, and a
central hall and is now divided into two apartments.

The house has oak floors, high ceilings, dark wood paneling, picture molding, and
leaded glass. The dining room and parlor are separated by sliding doors and have
fireplaces with a shared chimney. The main staircase has square newels and railings.
There was a wood stove and chimney in the kitchen.

The original yard had a garden and fruit trees in the back, two palm trees in the
front, and scattered shade trees. Therewas a redwood and tin stable and a redwood
fence in the rear. The front and side had a low concrete wall.

Some alterations were made while the Ronstadts still lived in the house. As the
family grew larger, a new bedroom and porch were added on the north side. A penthouse,
reached by an outside stairway, was built over the kitchen.

fter the house was sold in 1922, it was converted to six apartments. The veranda
and the side porch were closed in. The stables were removed and replaced with
plastered adobe apartments. Later, when the building was used as a tuberculosis
sanitorium, some frame cottages were built on the north side of the house and another
penthouse was added.

Through a succession of owners, the building deteriorated from abuse, overcrowding,
and lack of maintenance. By 1977, when the present owner purchased the house, it
contained 26 rental units, most without plumbing. Ramshackle units had been added
on the roof and the traffic had made holes in the roof. Rain, seepage, and faulty
plumbing had caused erosion.

During the past year, the roof units have been removed and the building has been
reroofed. Accumulated trash and garbage have been hauled out and the house has been
fumigated. The plumbing has been repaired, the number of rental units has been
greatly reduced, and the building has been painted. The owner continues to rent some
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of the units in order to raise funds for restoration of the exterior and rehabilitation
of the interior.

The area is now in a transition from residential to offices and is zoned B-1, which
allows two-story general business and retail structures. The building will probably
be made into offices as several other older homes in the area have been.
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—.PREHISTORIC ~ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC . COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE RELIGION

—1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-RISTORIC ——CONSERVATION —Law —_SCIENCE
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—.1600-1699 XARCHITECTURE — EDUCATION —MILITARY L SOCIAL'HUMANITARIAN

—1700-1799 —ART —ENGINEERING —MusIC __THEATER

—1800-18499 _XCOMMERCE — EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT — PHILOSOPHY _TRANSPORTATION

.XIQDO- —COMMURNICATIONS ~INDUSTRY _._PC}LJTICS!GOVERNMENT — OTHER (SPECIFY)
—INVENTION

SPECIFIC DATES 1904 BUILDER/ARCHITECT Henry C. Trost

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Ronstadt House weaves together several significant threads in the fabric of

Tucson history and development: the impact of Mexican-American pioneers on the

life of the community, the development of local industry and commerce, the construction
of fine homes as an expression of Tucson's maturity, the impact of noted Southwestern
architect Henry C. Trost, the gradual decline of an older neighborhood, and the

growing trend toward preservation and revitalization.

Frederick Ronstadt was born at Hacienda Las Delicias near Magdalena, Sonora in 1868.
His mother was Margarita Redondo and his father Colonel Frederick Augustus Ronstadt,
a German mining engineer and district prefect in Sonora. Colonel Ronstadt had
purchased property in Tucson in 1863 and had also been a signer of a petition to
create a separate territory of Arizona before that.

In April 1882, Colonel Ronstadt brought young Fred, then 14, to Tucson and apprenticed
him to wagonmakers Winnall Dalton and Adolfo Vasquez. MWinnall Dalton was a well-
educated cosmopolitan man whose father was English and whose mother came from a
prominent California family. Dalton spoke several lanquages. His wife was a cousin
of Colonel Ronstadt's wife.

In 1886, Dalton decided to devote his time to farming and mine ventures. Vasquez
then leased the shop to young Fred. After two years, Fred went to Los Angeles for
a few months to see whether there might be better opportunities there but there were
not, so he returned to Tucson. The lease expired in 1892 and Ronstadt built a small
shop and made wagons in exchange for tools and materials. Since this not very
successful, he closed the shop and worked for another firm for awhile. At the same
time he played flute and clarinet three nights a week at the opera house and gave
music Tessons to twenty boys.

By 1894 Ronstadt had saved enough money to open his own wagon shop and this time he
was very successful. Dalten's mining investments had not turned out well so

he came to work for Ronstadt in 1899. Ronstadt's business continued to prosper. His
carriages and wagons were sold throughout the West and in northern Mexico. The mule-
drawn cars for the Tucson street car company were made by Ronstadt's firm. As his
business expanded, he was several times forced to move to larger quarters. He
founded a large hardware company, sold farm and road-building machinery, and became
Tucson's first automobile dealer.

Ronstadt and his first wife had four children: Fred, Luisa, Laura, and Alice.

After she died, he married Guadalupe, the daughter of Winnall Dalton. They also had
four children: Edward, Gilbert, Alfred, and William. Fdward and Gilbert still run
the Ronstadt Hardware Company, Alfred was a lawyer in Mexico City and is now retired,

and William is a retired naval intelligence officer. Al1 four were born in the
er‘;‘r_adf Hauce | inda Roanctard+ tha nanular cinnaw ic NAilThavtle Aaninhtaek
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Ronstadt commissioned Henry C. Trost, noted southwestern architect, to design a

home for his bride, Lupe. Construction began in the fall of 1903 and the house was
finished in March of 1904, just as the Ronstadts were returning from their honeymoon
in Mexico City.

In addition to being a highly successful businessman, Ronstadt was very active in
civic affairs. His only political venture was to be a County Supervisor in 1902,
but he spearheaded many civic jmprovements of all kinds. He was especially
interested in music. In addition to playing the flute and clarinet, he also played
the guitar and sang. He was for many years the leader of the Philharmonic Band,
which gave Sunday concerts 1in the park. During the Spanish-American War, the band
became the regimental band for the Arizona National Guard. He was also a member
of the Saturday Morning Musical Club and of the Tucson Sympheny. His family shared
his love for music. His daughter Luisa was a professional singer and dancer special-
izing in Spanish and Latin American music; his grandaughter Linda is a successful
recording star. Ronstadt died in 1954 and was active in civic and business affairs
until the end.

The selection of Henry Trost to design the family home was not surprising. Trost
(1860-1933) had been in Tucson since 1898 and during the next two decades was chosen
to design a great many prominent buildings and homes in Tucson and other Arizona
cities. One of his buildings is the Carnegie Library in the National Register Armory
Park District. In 1904 he moved his main office to E1 Paso, where several of his
buildings and houses are still standing. Many of his designs are considered to be
strongly influenced by Louis Sullivan and by the Prairie School.

The Ronstadt family lived in the house until 1922 when it was sold to Marguerite

B. Strong and converted to six apartments under the name St. Francis Apartments. In
the last 50 years, the house has changed hands several times and several more
apartments have been added. At one time the building was used as a tuberculosis
sanitorium and the two frame cabins are from this period. The present owner purchased
the house in April 1977 and has removed many of the intrusive additions and made
considerable progress in rehabilitating the building.
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Nrizona Daily Star: December 3, 1933; December 14, 1954; May 3, 1959; March 8, 1963;
May 10, 1964; May 30, 1965; and December 17, 1968.

Engelbrecht, L.C. "Henry Trost: The Prairie School in the Southwest", Prairie
School Review, 1969.

Goff, David. Correspondence, 1978.

Sherman, J.E., and Ronstadt, E.F. "“Wagon Making in Southern Arizona", The Smoke
Signal, Spring, 1975,

Trost, H.C. Trost & Trost, Architects, 1907.

Tucson Daily Citizen, May 4, 1964 and 1904
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

1

Tucson Block 50, Lot 9
NW corner of North 6th Avenue and East 5th Street

.

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE coDe COUNTY CODE

“ STATE CODE COUNTY CODE

FElFORM PREPARED BY

'! NAME / TITLE
| Marjorie H. Wilson Historian
ORGANIZATION DATE
Arizona State Parks Board, Heritage Cons. Section September, 1978
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
| 1688 West Adams . . _ (602) 271-4174
CITY OR TOWN STATE
Phoenix Arizona 35007

iPASTATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER CERTIFICATION
THE EVALUATED SIGNIFICANCE OF THIS PROPERTY WITHIN THE STATE IS:
3 NATIONAL ___ STATE & LOCAL _____

i As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law B9-665). |
ﬁl hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated according to the
B criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service.

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER SIGNATURE
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ARIZONA STATE INVENTORY OF HISTORIC PLACESi_t_

1. NAME Ronstadt House (more recently, St. Francis Apartments)
2. LOCATION 607 North Sixth Avenue, Tucson, AZ 85705

3. H]’.STORY. (AND/OR PREHISTORY) AND SIGNIFICANCE

The Ronstadt house was built by Tucson pioneer Fred Ronstadt eground
1905 for his new bride, Lupe Dalton Ronstadt. The house was the Ronstadt
family home until the early 1920's when it was sold, The house has been
a convent, tuberculosis sanitorium, and today a tenement slum.,
Fred Ronstadt came from Magdelena, Sonora when he was 14 in’ 1882
In 1388 he opened his own wagon maker's shop. That business grew into
the present day F. Ronstadt Co. which is one of the largest hardware
and implement machinery outlets in Arizona. Fred Ronstadi was active
in Tucson's civic and cultural growth until his death in 195% at age 87.
His sons now operate the hardware store while his granddzughter, Linda
Ronstadt is a popular singer. o
j The Ronstzdt house is also notable for its architecture. The
? architect was Henry Trost who did many early buildings in Arizona and
El Faso, Texas. Trost brought influences of the praire school of
architecture from Chicago to the southwest., The Ronstadt house has one
of the most extensive and well preserved examples of Sullivanesque
ornament in the southwest. The house is a unigue example of how

"high style" from back east is blended with desert vernacular building
techniques. .

4. TPHYSICAL DESCRIPTICN

The house is 62' x 72' x 28" high, The basement has 1290 sq. ft.
The Tirst floor has 2500 sq. ft. while the second floor has 1170 sq. ft. Thus
the totzl square footage is 4960 sq. ft. The brick walls of the house are
16 inches thick on the first and 12 inches thick on the second floor. In the
basement, the walls are native volcanic rock and the flcor is herring bone brick.
The upper floors have hardwood floors. The roof is flat with felt, asphalt, and.
gravel covered with rolled roofing.
The upper flocr was once surroundedon the south, east, and west by an open
arcade. This has been closed-in in crder to meke more space rentable.
The site is a double lot (132 feet x 184 feet or 24,288 sq. ft.) located
) on the NV corner of N, 6th Ave, and E. 5th St. A garege building is located:
- along the alley on the west end of the site, In'the NW corner there is z brick
stuccoed duplex, Also directly north of the main house are two wood cabins used
2s sleeping rooms when the property was a tuberculosis sanitorium,



5. ENDANGERED The house is suffering from lack of maintenznce. Since the
control of the house is_now in the hands of architecture students it is in no
6. PRESENT AND POTENTTAL USES Limedieks: CAREEE:
The house is now subdivided into one and two room apartments. The short
term prospects include upgraded, larger apartment units.and student housing
as it is near the University of Arizona, The best future of the house would be

cow.merc:.a.l offlces, businesses (a restaurant), or.apariments.
7. OWNERS:

Original: Fred Ronstadt...

1967-1977 Fred B, Bailey 5

Howard and Glendora Goff 405 N 400 W , Marion, IN 46952 H/V

David N. Goff 3108 N. Terrell Place,’ Tucson, -AZ " 85716 a single man
Address: Pleasé address all correspondence to David K. Goff

3108 N, Terrell Place

Present:

8. INVENTORIED BY Tucson, AZ 85716
Organization:
£
Person: pavid N, Goff Fifth' year architecture student at the
University of Arizona J /ﬁ
Phone: 795-1514 home phone .

623-0207 Ronstadt House manager's office
Address: pavid N. Goff 3108 N, Terrell Place Tucson, AZ 85716

Date Inventoried: Jamuary 1977 to May 1977 -- Researched

“July’, 1977 -- Ariz. State Inventory of Hist. Places
~- 9_~TREFERENCES AND SOURCES ‘CONSULTED Application Sutmitied.

The Tucson Public Library Mdin Branch was the source of newspaper clippings
concerning the history of the Ronstadt family. The Arizona State Historlcal
Society and The University of Arizona Library Special Collections supplied
a2dditional information and photographs. Gilbert Ronstadt provided photographs
and background information on the house., Fred Bailey also was helpful in
providing more recent history of the house. A research paper by lilke Chauvin
written in ¥ay, 1970 for Prof. Gordon Heck at the U of A College of“Architecture
gave insight into what the original floor plan may have been.

10. REMARKS

"-Iu.

Arizona State Parks Board Historic Preservation Program
Revised 5-1-75
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